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From:
Sent: Wednesday, 22 August 2012 12:00 PM
To: Alan March
Cc: Rush, Peter;
Subject: RE: Humanitarian Overseas Service Medal (Iraq) Declaration [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Alan, in your absence, I spoke with   about handling –   are you happy to fill Alan in, in the first instance? 

Thanks, 

 

From: Alan March [mailto:Alan.March@ausaid.gov.au]  
Sent: Wednesday, 22 August 2012 11:54 AM 
To:
Cc: Rush, Peter;
Subject: RE: Humanitarian Overseas Service Medal (Iraq) Declaration [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED] 

Peter, 

Any movement?  No angst in this, but I would be keen to know of progress. 

Cheers 
alan 

Alan March 

Assistant Director General | Humanitarian Preparedness and Response |AusAID 
Ph  | Fax  | Mobile 

From: @pmc.gov.au]  
Sent: Wednesday, 11 April 2012 5:42 PM 
To: Alan March 
Cc: Rush, Peter;
Subject: RE: Humanitarian Overseas Service Medal (Iraq) Declaration [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED] 

That’s all very helpful, thanks Alan, we will settle the declaration on the basis of that advice, and brief PSPM next 
week.  Cross your fingers! 

From: Alan March [mailto:Alan.March@ausaid.gov.au]  
Sent: Wednesday, 11 April 2012 5:15 PM 
To:
Cc: Rush, Peter;
Subject: RE: Humanitarian Overseas Service Medal (Iraq) Declaration [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED] 
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I trust this assists. 
 
Cheers 
alan 

Alan March  
                                                                   
 
Assistant Director General | Humanitarian Preparedness and Response |AusAID  
Ph | Fax | Mobile

 

From: @pmc.gov.au]  
Sent: Wednesday, 11 April 2012 8:42 AM 
To: Alan March 
Cc: Rush, Peter;
Subject: FW: Humanitarian Overseas Service Medal (Iraq) Declaration [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED] 
 
 
Alan, 

Any other comments welcome. 
 
Thanks, 
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 | Adviser

Legal Policy Branch
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet
Ngunnawal Country, One National Circuit  Barton  ACT  2600  |  PO Box 6500  CANBERRA  ACT 
2600
e. @pmc.gov.au  w. pmc.gov.au

The Department acknowledges and pays respect to the past, present and emerging Elders and
Traditional Custodians of Country, and the continuation of cultural, spiritual and educational
practices of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples.

 
 
 

From:  
Sent: Tuesday, 19 October 2021 4:12 PM
To: @pmc.gov.au>
Subject: FOI/2021/267 - Trav S (Via Right to Know Website) - Appointment of decision maker
[SEC=OFFICIAL]
 

OFFICIAL
Hello 
 
PM&C has received an FOI request from the applicant above, a copy of the request is attached.
 
The applicant refers to PM&C correspondence to AusAID/DFAT on 19/3/2012 and 11/4/2012
regarding a prosed Brief to PSPM Jan McLucas entitled ‘amendment of humanitarian overseas
service medal (Iraq) declaration 2004 to extend to specified commercial contractors’. I
understand the scope of the request to be:
 

·       For correspondence from the PM&C to AusAID/DFAT subsequent to the PM&C emails
referred to above. The applicant has specified a date range between 11/4/2012 and
5/12/2012.
 

Would  Ministerial & Parliamentary Support be the most appropriate area to seek a decision
maker? Callie Zorzi appears to be the Assistant Secretary with responsibility for Departmental
Liaison. Should I write to Callie regarding appointment as DM, or is there a more appropriate
person/area to assign this to?
 
Please let me know
 
Happy to discuss.
 

 | Adviser
FOI Section | Legal Policy Branch

I work Monday to Thursday
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From: FOI
To: ; Rush, Peter; FOI
Subject: RE: Approving searches for FOI/2021/267 - Trav S - corro from Dept to AusAid in 2012 [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Monday, 25 October 2021 12:02:09 PM
Attachments: image006.png

OFFICIAL
Thanks , I didn’t think so either.
 
I agree it would be good to just have a quick look through the files and confirm.
 
Thanks

 
 

From: @pmc.gov.au> 
Sent: Monday, 25 October 2021 11:51 AM
To: Rush, Peter <xxxxx.xxxx@xxx.xxx.xx>; FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx>
Subject: RE: Approving searches for FOI/2021/267 - Trav S - corro from Dept to AusAid in 2012
[SEC=OFFICIAL]
 

OFFICIAL
Hi 
 
I agree with the scope of the email search as fitting the request.
 
In terms of non-email corro on file, I do not believe there would be anything on our paper files
on this matter based on my recollection.
 
I am going into the office this Wednesday and am happy to  take a quick look anyway.
 
Regards,
 

 

From: Rush, Peter <xxxxx.xxxx@xxx.xxx.xx > 
Sent: Monday, 25 October 2021 11:44 AM
To: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx >; @pmc.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Approving searches for FOI/2021/267 - Trav S - corro from Dept to AusAid in 2012
[SEC=OFFICIAL]
 

OFFICIAL
Thanks
I agree with proposed email search terms.

 should be able to confirm whether there is any non-email corro on file, about this
matter between PM&C and AusAid.
Cheers - Rush
 

From: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx > 
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Sent: Monday, 25 October 2021 10:41 AM
To: Rush, Peter <xxxxx.xxxx@xxx.xxx.xx >;  @pmc.gov.au>
Cc: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx >
Subject: Approving searches for FOI/2021/267 - Trav S - corro from Dept to AusAid in 2012
[SEC=OFFICIAL]
 

OFFICIAL
Good morning Rush and 
 
Trav S has made the below/attached request – it is in a similar vein to the one other Trav S
matter in which I was the FOI case officer. The request seems clear.
 
Could you please advise if the requested correspondence would be contained in non-email files?
 
If not, I’d suggest conducting email searches as follows:
 

FOI Number Search Date
Range

1st Search
Criterion

2nd Search
Criterion

3rd Search
Criterion

FOI/2021/267 11 April 2012
to 5 December
2012

Emails from:
 
@pmc.gov.au
email addresses
 
to:
 
@ausaid.gov.au
email addresses

Emails must
contain the
following:
 
“Humanitarian
Overseas Service
Medal”
 
OR
 
“HOSM”

Emails must
contain the
following:
 
“Iraq”

 
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
Sent: Thursday, 21 October 2021 4:15 PM
To: Rush, Peter <xxxxx.xxxx@xxx.xxx.xx >
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Cc: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx >; @pmc.gov.au>; 
@pmc.gov.au>

Subject: New FOI request – seeking advice and decision maker – (FOI/2021/267) - Trav S (via
Right to Know Website) [SEC=OFFICIAL]
 

OFFICIAL
Dear Peter
 
As discussed with  we received a new FOI request (attached) from Trav S (via the Right to
Know Website) in the following terms:
 

Dear PMC, please accept this request for information in accordance with the FOI Act.
 
On 19 March 2012, your department emailed AusAID (DFAT) stating ‘further to your
recent discussion with Peter, here’s draft text for your consideration that we propose to
brief the new PSPM Senator Jan McLucas with soon’.  Titled ‘amendment of humanitarian
overseas service medal (iraq) declaration 2004 to extend to specified commercial
contractors’ the document recommended the PSPM:
 
‘1.  Sign the letter to the Governor-General recommending she makes a declaration under
HOSM Regulations 2011, extending eligibility for the ‘Iraq’ clasp to the medal, to specified
commercial contractors (Attachment A). 
 
2.  Sign the proposed Humanitarian Overseas Service Medal (Iraq) Declaration 2011
(Attachment B).'
 
On 11 April 2012 your department emailed AusAID (DFAT) providing a written agreement
to ‘settle the declaration … and brief the PSPM next week’.  However FOI investigations
reveal your department evidently withheld the documents from PSPM McLucas. 
 
Please provide a copy of your department's subsequent correspondence to AusAID
regarding this matter.  Please limit the search to subsequent correspondence occurring
between 11 April and 5 December 2012.
 

Thank you for confirming that you are the appropriate decision maker for this request, and that
 is the contact officer.

 
Next Steps – Action Required
 
We would be grateful if you could please:

·       consider the scope of the request, including clarity, potential volume of documents and
inform the FOI team if you consider this scope unclear and will require clarification from
the applicant or whether other branches or divisions within the Department will be
involved.

 
 will be in contact to organise an initial meeting.

 
Please contact us if you have any queries or wish to discuss.
 
Kind regards
 

 | Adviser/Administration Officer
FOI Section | Legal Policy Branch
p.  
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
Cc: FOI
Subject: Decision for clearance - FOI/2021/267 - Trav S - Correspondence between PM&C and AusAID

[SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Wednesday, 3 November 2021 9:25:41 AM
Attachments: FOI-2021-267 - Decision.docx

FOI-2021-267 - Document (marked up).pdf
FOI-2021-118 Document 26 (marked up).pdf
FOI-2021-118 - Decision Letter.pdf
image007.png

OFFICIAL
Hi 
 
Attached please find for your clearance a decision letter for Trav S (FOI/2021/267). One
document was found to be in scope for the request.
 
A similar document came up in a previous Trav S matter (FOI/2021/118), a marked up version of
which I have attached for your info as well. Rush agreed to use similar reasoning for this matter
that we used for that previous matter.
 
Please let me know if you have any concerns. While Rush is currently acting FAS, the decision is
not due until 17 November, when he will be back to his substantive position, and he has said he
is happy to be decision maker throughout the process.
 
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
To: Rush, Peter
Cc: ; FOI
Subject: FOI/2021/267 - FOI Decision for approval - Trav S - Correspondence with AusAID

[SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive, ACCESS=Legal-Privilege]
Date: Thursday, 4 November 2021 10:07:06 AM
Attachments: FOI-2021-267 - Decision.docx

FOI-2021-267 - Document (marked up).pdf

OFFICIAL: Sensitive
Legal privilege

Dear Rush,
 
Please find attached the draft refusal decision for FOI/2021/267, for your approval.
 
The decision is due on Wednesday 17 November 2021. The decision would not be sent until 15
November at the earliest, when you are back in your substantive position.
 
In terms of next steps:

Please review the attached draft decision.
If you agree with the decision letter, please send a ‘for noting’ email by Monday 8
November 2021 to John Reid, FAS Government Division (please cc Petra Gartmann,

 and xxx@xxx.xxx.xx ). A draft email for you to use is below.
Once John notes your proposed decision, the FOI team will send a ‘for noting’ email to the
PMO. You will be copied in.
Once the PMO has noted, we will arrange to affix your e-signature to the decision and we
will then send the decision to the applicant.

 
Please let us know if there is anything further you require.
 
Kind regards

 
……………………………….
 
Dear John
 
I would be grateful if you could please note my proposed refusal decision for FOI/2021/267
(attached).
 
The decision is due to the FOI applicant by Wednesday 17 November 2021.
 
Scope of the FOI request, background:
 
On 18 October 2021, Trav S (the applicant) made a request under the Freedom of Information
Act 1982 in the following terms:
 

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

FOI/2023/313 - Document 12
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

 
Summary of the proposed decision
 
The Department conducted searches, which led to one document being identified as relevant to
the request.
 
The proposed decision is to refuse access to the document under sections 42 (legal professional
privilege), 47C (deliberative matter), 47E(d) (operations of an agency) and 47G (business
information) of the FOI Act.
 
Sensitivities:
 
I do not consider there to be any sensitivities with my proposed decision.
 
Regards
 
 
 



From: Reid, John
To: Rush, Peter; Reid, John
Cc: Gartmann, Petra ; FOI; 
Subject: RE: FOI/2021/267 - FOI Decision for noting - Trav S - Correspondence with AusAID

[SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive, ACCESS=Legal-Privilege]
Date: Monday, 8 November 2021 10:55:44 AM

OFFICIAL: Sensitive
Legal privilege

Hi Peter
 
John has noted this FOI.
 
Regards

 

From: Rush, Peter <xxxxx.xxxx@xxx.xxx.xx> 
Sent: Friday, 5 November 2021 9:53 AM
To: Reid, John <xxxx.xxxx@xxx.xxx.xx>
Cc: Gartmann, Petra <xxxxx.xxxxxxxx@xxx.xxx.xx>; @pmc.gov.au>;
FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx>; @pmc.gov.au>
Subject: FOI/2021/267 - FOI Decision for noting - Trav S - Correspondence with AusAID
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
To: FOI
Cc:  John; Rush, Peter; ; Gartmann, Petra; PMC Media; PMO -

Senior Media Team
Subject: RE: For noting by 12 November 2021 - FOI/2021/267 - Trav S - correspondence with AusAID in 2012

regarding HOSM [SEC=PROTECTED, ACCESS=Legal-Privilege]
Date: Tuesday, 16 November 2021 7:58:20 AM
Attachments: image004.png

PROTECTED
Legal privilege

Noted.
 

From: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx>  
Sent: Monday, 8 November 2021 11:30 AM
To: pm.gov.au>
Cc: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx>;  pm.gov.au>; 

@pm.gov.au>; Reid, John <xxxx.xxxx@xxx.xxx.xx>;  Rush, Peter
<xxxxx.xxxx@xxx.xxx.xx>;   @pmc.gov.au>; Gartmann, Petra
<xxxxx.xxxxxxxx@xxx.xxx.xx>;  PMC Media <xxxxx@xxx.xxx.xx>;  PMO - Senior Media Team
<xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx@xx.xxx.xx>
Subject: For noting by 12 November 2021 - FOI/2021/267 - Trav S - correspondence with AusAID
in 2012 regarding HOSM [SEC=PROTECTED, ACCESS=Legal-Privilege]
 

PROTECTED
Legal privilege

Dear
 
I would be grateful if you could please note the proposed refusal decision for FOI/2021/267
(attached) by Peter Rush, Assistant Secretary, Parliamentary & Government Branch.
 
Please respond by Friday 12 November 2021.
 
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
 
The decision maker does not consider there to be any sensitivities with the proposed decision.
 
Please let us know if you need any further information.
 
Kind regards,
 

 | Adviser
Legal Policy Branch
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet
Ngunnawal Country, One National Circuit  Barton  ACT  2600  |  PO Box 6500  CANBERRA  ACT 
2600
e. pmc.gov.au  w. pmc.gov.au

The Department acknowledges and pays respect to the past, present and emerging Elders and
Traditional Custodians of Country, and the continuation of cultural, spiritual and educational
practices of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples.
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From: Rush, Peter
To: FOI
Subject: RE: FOI/2021/267 - Decision notified to applicant [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Tuesday, 16 November 2021 5:05:58 PM
Attachments: image004.png

OFFICIAL
Thanks 
 

From: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx> 
Sent: Tuesday, 16 November 2021 4:28 PM
To: Rush, Peter <xxxxx.xxxx@xxx.xxx.xx>
Cc: @pmc.gov.au>; FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx>
Subject: FOI/2021/267 - Decision notified to applicant [SEC=OFFICIAL]
 

OFFICIAL
Hi Rush,
 
Confirming the decision for FOI/2021/267 has been sent to the applicant following the PMO’s
noting the decision this morning. A copy is attached.
 
Thanks to you and for your instructions. We have finalised this matter in our system.
 
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
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The primary decision identified one document relevant to the request. Access was refused on the basis of the document being: 
 

 exempt under section 42 (legal professional privilege) of the FOI Act; and 

 conditionally exempt under sections 47C, 47E(d) and 47G of the FOI Act and disclosure would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest. 
 
The internal review request 
 
In his request for internal review, the applicant submitted that: 
 

 legal professional privilege was waived over the parts of the document found to be exempt under section 42; and 

 for the parts of the document found to be conditionally exempt, the public interest in releasing the document outweighs the public interest in not releasing the 
document. 

 
The proposed internal review decision 
 
The proposed internal review decision is to affirm the primary decision. 
 
Sensitivities 
 
I do not believe there to be any sensitivity with the decision.  
 
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
2. Sign the proposed Humanitarian Overseas Service Medal (Iraq) Declaration 2011
(Attachment B).’
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
 

The primary decision identified one document relevant to the request. Access was refused on
the basis of the document being:

exempt under section 42 (legal professional privilege) of the FOI Act; and
conditionally exempt under sections 47C, 47E(d) and 47G of the FOI Act and disclosure
would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest.

 
In his request for internal review, the applicant submitted that:

legal professional privilege was waived over the parts of the document found to be
exempt under section 42; and
for the parts of the document found to be conditionally exempt, the public interest in
releasing the document outweighs the public interest in not releasing the document.

 
The proposed internal review decision is to affirm the primary decision.
 

s 22(1)(a)(ii)



The proposed internal review decision is to affirm the primary decision.
 
Cheers,
JR

 
 
_________________________________________________________
John Reid PSM | First Assistant Secretary
Government Division
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet

  |e. xxxx.xxxx@xxx.xxx.xx  | w. www.pmc.gov.au
Ngunnawal Country, One National Circuit  Barton  ACT  2600  |  PO Box 6500  CANBERRA  ACT  2600
 
Executive Assistant – 
p. 
e
 
 

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
To: Reid, John
Cc: FOI
Subject: FOI Internal Review Decisions sent to applicant (Trav S) [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Monday, 13 December 2021 11:59:41 AM
Attachments: FOI2021267IR - Decision SECOFFICIAL.msg

image004.png

OFFICIAL
Dear JR,
 
Following the PMO’s noting of your internal review decisions on Friday, we have finalised the
two internal reviews for Trav S (  and FOI/2021/267IR).
 
Copies of the decisions are attached for your reference.
 
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
Subject: RE: For response by 6 Sep - FOI consultation - PM&C refs: FOI/2021/267IC and 

[SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive, ACCESS=Legal-Privilege]
Date: Wednesday, 6 September 2023 5:03:19 PM
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OFFICIAL: Sensitive
Legal privilege

 
Dear
 
Thank you for consulting the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade (DFAT) in regard to
FOI/2021/267IC and 
 
DFAT has reviewed the material, and advises that we have not identified any sensitivities
associated with the release of these documents. We note that the treatment of this material in
the context of the OAIC review is ultimately a matter for PM&C’s decision-maker.
 
If you have any further questions please do not hesitate to contact us.
 
Kind regards
 

 
_______________________________
Assistant Director |  Freedom of Information Section
Public Interest Law Branch | Regulatory and Legal Policy Division
 
Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade
T  |

dfat.gov.au | Twitter | Facebook | Instagram  | LinkedIn

© Kim Hill, Among Women (2011)
We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country throughout Australia, and their continuing connection to land,
waters and community. We pay our respects to all First Nations peoples, their cultures and to their Elders, past, present
and emerging.
 

This email and any attachments may contain confidential information or legal advice over which
legal professional privilege can be claimed. Such privilege is not waived and you should ensure
that, in your handling of the advice, you avoid waiving privilege. Please consult the author of the
advice if unsure about appropriate handling.
 
 
 
 

From: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx>  
Sent: Wednesday, 30 August 2023 5:08 PM
To: FOI <xxx@xxxx.xxx.xx>
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Cc: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx>
Subject: For response by 6 Sep - FOI consultation - PM&C ref: FOI/2021/267IC
[SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive, ACCESS=Legal-Privilege]
 

OFFICIAL: Sensitive
Legal privilege

FOI/2021/267IC
 
Dear FOI Colleagues
 
The Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet (the Department) is currently preparing its
submissions regarding an Information Commissioner (IC) review application, and would like to
consult your agency on relevant material.
 
Background
 
On 18 October 2021, an applicant made an FOI request to the Department in the following
terms:
 

On 19 March 2012, your department emailed AusAID (DFAT) stating ‘further to your
recent discussion with Peter, here’s draft text for your consideration that we propose to
brief the new PSPM Senator Jan McLucas with soon’. Titled ‘amendment of humanitarian
overseas service medal (iraq) declaration 2004 to extend to specified commercial
contractors’ the document recommended the PSPM:
 
‘1. Sign the letter to the Governor-General recommending she makes a declaration under
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
to ‘settle the declaration … and brief the PSPM next week’. However FOI investigations
reveal your department evidently withheld the documents from PSPM McLucas.
 
Please provide a copy of your department's subsequent correspondence to AusAID
regarding this matter. Please limit the search to subsequent correspondence occurring
between 11 April and 5 December 2012.

 
One document was identified as falling within scope of the request. On 16 November 2021, the
Department issued a decision refusing access to the document on the basis that it contains
material that is exempt under s 42 (legal professional privilege), s 47C (deliberative matter), s
47E(d) (operations of an agency) and s 47G (business information) of the FOI Act.
 
A subsequent internal review affirmed the original decision. On 11 August 2023, the Department
was notified that the applicant sought IC review. The Department’s preliminary view is that the
sensitivity within the document has not diminished even with the passage of time, and
accordingly, we are preparing submissions to support the original exemptions claimed.
 



For action
 
We have attached the document which may be of interest to your agency. We would appreciate
any comments you may have as to the potential harm that would flow from release. Our line
area advised that your Humanitarian Response Planning Section, Humanitarian and
Preparedness Branch (point of contact is @dfat.gov.au), may be able to comment
regarding the material.
 
It will assist if you were to express your views in terms of the exemptions provided for in the FOI
Act, and if you were to provide reasons which are sufficiently detailed so that the Department
can ensure any concerns and sensitivities are taken into account in its (confidential) submissions
to the IC. The document is marked-up in red boxes to show the exemptions claimed and the
material considered irrelevant to the request.
 
We would appreciate your response by COB Wednesday, 6 September 2023 to enable us to
respond to the Information Commissioner within timeframes.
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me on  if you have any questions or wish to
discuss.
 
Yours sincerely

 
Adviser | FOI Section
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet
p. 
Ngunawal Country, One National Circuit  Barton  ACT  2600  |  PO Box 6500  CANBERRA  ACT 
2600
e. xxx@xxx.xxx.xx   w. pmc.gov.au

The Department acknowledges and pays respect to the past, present and emerging Elders and
Traditional Custodians of Country, and the continuation of cultural, spiritual and educational
practices of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples.

 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
IMPORTANT: This message, and any attachments to it, contains information 
that is confidential and may also be the subject of legal professional or 
other privilege. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, you 
must not review, copy, disseminate or disclose its contents to any other 
party or take action in reliance of any material contained within it. If you 
have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately by 
return email informing them of the mistake and delete all copies of the 
message from your computer system. 
______________________________________________________________________
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From:
To:
Cc: ; Belgrove, David; FOI; 
Subject: FW: For response by 30 Aug - Consultation - IC review - FOI/2021/267IC [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive,

ACCESS=Legal-Privilege]
Date: Wednesday, 6 September 2023 5:25:39 PM
Attachments: image005.png

RE For response by 6 Sep - FOI consultation - PMC refs FOI2021267IC and 
SECOFFICIALSensitive ACCESSLegal-Privilege.msg

FOI-2021-267IC - DFAT consult.pdf

OFFICIAL: Sensitive
Legal privilege

Dear 
 
For information, please find attached the response from DFAT regarding our consultation. In
short, they have not identified any sensitivities. As discussed in our previous meeting, since
PM&C is still of the view that the documents are sensitive, I will proceed in drafting the
submissions for your review/input. I am aiming to provide these to you next week.
 
If you have any questions or comments, please let us know.
 
Kind regards
 

 | Adviser
FOI and Privacy Section | Legal Policy Branch
p

From: FOI 
Sent: Wednesday, 30 August 2023 5:12 PM
To: @pmc.gov.au>
Cc: @pmc.gov.au>; Belgrove, David
<xxxxx.xxxxxxxx@xxx.xxx.xx>; FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx>; 

@pmc.gov.au>
Subject: RE: For response by 30 Aug - Consultation - IC review - FOI/2021/267IC
[SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive, ACCESS=Legal-Privilege]
 

OFFICIAL: Sensitive
Legal privilege

Thank you, 
 
I have sent the consultation emails to DFAT – see attached. You might notice that I have
removed the PM&C internal emails in the document bundles we sent.
 
Let us know if you would like us to undertake any further consultation. I will be on leave for the
rest of the week and can action this matter further next week.
 
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

 
One document was found to be in scope of the request. The marked-up version is attached for
your reference.
 
For action
 
Please review the attached document and provide your comments regarding potential release.
In particular, we would appreciate if you could please:

-          identify any material that may now be appropriate for release given the passage of time,
or alternatively,

-          provide views as to whether the Department should continue to press the exemptions
claimed, and outline the continuing harm that may flow from release.

 
We would appreciate your response by Wednesday, 30 August 2023 to enable us to respond to
the Information Commissioner. Subject to your views, we are also proposing to consult DFAT and
OPC on potential release.
 
Background
 
On 16 November 2021, the Department issued a decision (attached) refusing access to the
document on the basis that it contained material that is exempt under s 42 (legal professional
privilege), s 47C (deliberative matter), s 47E(d) (operations of an agency) and s 47G (business
information) of the FOI Act.
 
On 13 December 2021, the primary decision was affirmed in internal review (attached). On 11
August 2023, the Office of the Australian Information Commissioner notified the Department
that the applicant sought IC review (attached).
 
Due to the passage of time and potentially reduced sensitivities in the documents, the
Department is now considering whether it may be appropriate to release some material to the
applicant through a revised FOI decision under s55G of the FOI Act. If this is not possible, the
Department will provide submissions to the OAIC regarding the exemptions claimed, along with
the marked-up version of the documents in question.
 
Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or wish to discuss.
 
Kind regards
 

 | Adviser, FOI and Privacy Section
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet
p s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 47F 



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
To: Belgrove, David
Cc: FOI; 
Subject: FW: FOI consultation (FOI/2021/112IC and FOI/2021/267IC) [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Tuesday, 3 October 2023 3:57:41 PM
Attachments: image004.png

OFFICIAL
Dear David
 
We consulted with NSD last week on the 2 IC review matters. Please see their comments below.
 
I will arrange a catch-up for later this week so we can discuss next steps.
 
Kind regards

 

From: @pmc.gov.au> 
Sent: Friday, 29 September 2023 4:08 PM
To: @pmc.gov.au>
Cc: @pmc.gov @pmc.gov.au>; FOI
<xxx@xxx.xxx.xx>
Subject: RE: FOI consultation (FOI/2021/112IC and FOI/2021/267IC) [SEC=OFFICIAL]
 

OFFICIAL
Hi 
 
Thanks for the meeting today and for your patience in explaining your request for action.
 
I have reviewed the material that was provided during our meeting. In my opinion, our national
security interests would not be damaged by the release of this information.
 
Should you require further information, please don’t hesitate to call or ask me to meet you for
more discussions.
 
Thanks and regards,
 
 

  
Acting Assistant Secretary
Senior Adviser, DSR Implementation
Defence and Intelligence Branch | National Security Division
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet
p. 
m
Ngunawal Country, One National Circuit  Barton  ACT  2600  |  PO Box 6500  CANBERRA  ACT 
2600
e   w. pmc.gov.au
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The Department acknowledges and pays respect to the past, present and emerging Elders and
Traditional Custodians of Country, and the continuation of cultural, spiritual and educational
practices of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples.

 
 
 
 

From: pmc.gov.au> 
Sent: Friday, 29 September 2023 1:43 PM
To: @pmc.gov.au>
Cc:  FOI
<xxx@xxx.xxx.xx >
Subject: FOI consultation (FOI/2021/112IC and FOI/2021/267IC) [SEC=OFFICIAL]
 

OFFICIAL
Dear
 
Thank you for your time today.
 
As discussed, please see below summary of the matter:

·         The applicant, 
·         The 2 FOI requests on hand and the Department’s decisions were made in 2021.

o   The documents involved (attached) are correspondence between PM&C and
AusAid in 2012 regarding the Humanitarian Overseas Service Medal (HOSM),
specifically discussing the potential extension of eligibility for the HOSM (Iraq
clasp) to specific commercial contractors.

o   The Department refused access to these documents on the basis that they contain
material that is exempt under s 42 (legal professional privilege), s 47C
(deliberative matter), s 47E(d) (operations of an agency) and s 47G (business
information) of the FOI Act. Access refusal was also affirmed in internal review.

·         Last month, the Office of the Australian Information Commissioner (OAIC) informed the
Department that the applicant has applied for external review of the access refusal
decisions. Given that the matter is now in external review stage, the Department can
either defend all of the exemption claims, or release some material where sensitivity has
reduced due to the passage of time.

·         DFAT was consulted on the documents recently and did not identify any sensitivities.
 
For action
 
We would be grateful if you could please advise, from a national security perspective, if you
identify any potential harm that could flow from the release of the documents. Grateful for your
advice by COB Tuesday, 3 October 2023.
 
If you would like to discuss further, please let me know and I will organise another catch-up.
 
Many thanks,
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 | Adviser
FOI and Privacy Section | Legal Policy Branch
p. s 22(1)(a)(ii)
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Freedom of Information (FOI) request 
Notice of Revised Decision under s 55G of the FOI Act 

Reference: FOI/2021/267IC  

To: Mr Trav S 
foi+request-7981-fe1bc995@righttoknow.org.au  
 
Cc: Office of the Australian Information Commissioner 
foidr@oaic.gov.au 
 

Dear Mr Trav S 

I refer to your request under the Freedom of Information Act 1982 (the FOI Act) to the Department of 
the Prime Minister and Cabinet (the Department) on 18 October 2021, for the following: 

On 19 March 2012, your department emailed AusAID (DFAT) stating ‘further to your recent 
discussion with Peter, here’s draft text for your consideration that we propose to brief the new 
PSPM Senator Jan McLucas with soon’. Titled ‘amendment of humanitarian overseas service 
medal (iraq) declaration 2004 to extend to specified commercial contractors’ the document 
recommended the PSPM: 

‘1. Sign the letter to the Governor-General recommending she makes a declaration 
under HOSM Regulations 2011, extending eligibility for the ‘Iraq’ clasp to the medal, to 
specified commercial contractors (Attachment A). 

2. Sign the proposed Humanitarian Overseas Service Medal (Iraq) Declaration 2011 
(Attachment B).' 

On 11 April 2012 your department emailed AusAID (DFAT) providing a written agreement to 
‘settle the declaration … and brief the PSPM next week’. However FOI investigations reveal your 
department evidently withheld the documents from PSPM McLucas. 
 
Please provide a copy of your department's subsequent correspondence to AusAID regarding 
this matter. Please limit the search to subsequent correspondence occurring between 11 April 
and 5 December 2012. 

On 16 November 2021, the Department notified you of its decision regarding one document identified 
within scope of your request (the requested document). The primary decision-maker refused access 
on the grounds that the requested document contains material that was exempt under section 42 
(legal professional privilege), section 47C (deliberative material), section 47E(d) (operations of an 
agency) and section 47G (business information) of the FOI Act, and that relevant public interest 
factors weighed against disclosure of the documents. You sought internal review of this decision. 

FOI/2023/313 - Attachment 1 to Document 25
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On 13 December 2021, the Department notified you of its internal review decision which affirmed the 
primary decision. On 11 August 2023, the Office of the Australian Information Commissioner (OAIC) 
notified the Department that you have applied for an Information Commissioner (IC) review of the 
Department’s internal review decision. 

The purpose of this letter is to provide you, under section 55G of the FOI Act, with a revised decision 
on your request for access. 

Section 55G of the FOI Act 
Section 55G(1)(a) of the FOI Act provides that after an application is made to the IC for review, an 
agency or Minister may (at any time during IC review) revoke or vary an access refusal decision to 
favour the applicant by giving access to a document in accordance with the request. 

Section 55G(2) of the FOI Act provides that an agency must notify the IC of the new decision (section 
55G(2)(a)) and the revised decision will be the decision under review (section 55G(2)(b)). 

Authorised decision-maker 
I am authorised to make this revised decision in accordance with arrangements approved by the 
Department’s Secretary under section 23 of the FOI Act.  

I have reviewed the requested document and consider I am now in a position to grant part access to 
the document in accordance with your request. Accordingly, I have decided to make this revised 
decision under section 55G of the FOI Act. 

Material taken into account 
In reaching my decision, I referred to the following:  

• your FOI request; 
• the primary decision; 
• the requested document; 
• the internal review decision; 
• your request for IC review; 
• consultation comments from another agency; 
• the FOI Act; and 
• the Guidelines issued by the Information Commissioner under section 93A of the FOI Act (the 

FOI Guidelines).1 

                                                 
1 FOI Guidelines. 
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Documents in scope of request 
I am satisfied that the requested document meets the terms of your request.  

Revised decision and reasons 
I have considered all the information available to me, including the fresh consultation comments 
received from another agency. Due to the passage of time and the decreased sensitivity of the 
material contained within the document, I have decided to grant access in part to the document, 
while maintaining the exemptions over parts that contain legally privileged material (section 42) and 
business information of a third party (section 47G). Irrelevant material has been deleted under section 
22(1)(a)(ii) of the FOI Act. 

My findings of fact and reasons for deciding that certain information is exempt or irrelevant is set out 
below. 

1. Legal Professional Privilege (section 42 of the FOI Act) 

Section 42(1) of the FOI Act provides that a document is an exempt document if it is of such a nature 
that it would be privileged from production in legal proceedings on the ground of legal professional 
privilege. 

The FOI Guidelines provide that to determine the application of the exemption, the decision maker 
must have regard to the common law concept of legal professional privilege.2 The FOI Guidelines also 
provide that at common law, determining whether a communication is privileged requires a 
consideration of: 

• whether there is a legal adviser-client relationship; 
• whether the communication was for the purpose of giving or receiving legal advice, or use in 

connection with actual or anticipated litigation; 
• whether the advice given is independent; and 
• whether the advice given is confidential.3 

I am satisfied that parts of the requested document meets the common law requirements for 
establishing a claim of legal professional privilege. I also note that the Department is the holder of the 
privilege, and has not waived that privilege. Accordingly, I am satisfied that those parts of the 
requested document are exempt under section 42 of the FOI Act. 

2. Business information (section 47G of the FOI Act) 

Section 47G(1)(a) of the FOI Act conditionally exempts documents where disclosure would disclose 
information concerning a person in respect of his or her business or professional affairs, or concerning 
the business, commercial or financial affairs of an organisation or undertaking (business information), 
                                                 
2 FOI Guidelines [5.127]. 
3 FOI Guidelines [5.129]. 
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where the disclosure of the information would, or could reasonably be expected to, unreasonably 
affect the person adversely in respect of his or her lawful business or professional affairs or that 
organisation or undertaking in respect of its lawful business, commercial or financial affairs. 

Parts of the requested document contain the business information of an organisation. I consider that 
such business information is conditionally exempt from release, as its disclosure would, or could 
reasonably be expected to involve the unreasonable disclosure of business information of a third 
party. Accordingly, I am satisfied that those parts of the requested document are conditionally exempt 
under section 47G(1)(a) of the FOI Act. 

3. Public interest 

The FOI Act provides that a conditionally exempt document must nevertheless be disclosed unless its 
disclosure would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest.4 In determining whether its disclosure 
would be contrary to the public interest, the FOI Act requires a decision-maker to balance the public 
interest factors.  

As I have decided that some material is conditionally exempt, I am now required to consider the 
public interest factors. In doing so, I have not taken into account the irrelevant factors as set out in 
section 11B(4) of the FOI Act, this includes: 

a) access to the document could result in embarrassment to the Commonwealth Government, or 
cause a loss in confidence in the Commonwealth Government 

b) access to the document could result in any person misinterpreting or misunderstanding the 
document 

c) the author of the documents was (or is) of high seniority in the agency to which the request for 
access to the document was made 

d) access to the document could result in confusion or unnecessary debate 
 
In applying the public interest, I have noted the objects of the FOI Act5 and the factors favouring 
access as listed in section 11B(3) of the FOI Act. Having regard to the material before me and the 
circumstances of the documents found to be conditionally exempt I am satisfied that access would 
promote the objects of the FOI Act.6  

The FOI Act does not set out any public interest factors against disclosure and require agencies to 
have regard to the FOI Guidelines in order to work out if disclosure would, on balance, be contrary to 
the public interest.7 The FOI Guidelines contain a non-exhaustive list of factors that, depending on the 
circumstances of the documents found to be conditionally exempt, may weigh against disclosure.  

                                                 
4 FOI Act, s 11A(5). 
5 FOI Act, s 3. 
6 FOI Act, s 11B(3)(a). 
7 FOI Act, s 11B(5). 
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In my view, the factors against disclosure of the conditionally exempt material is that disclosure of the 
information could reasonably be expected to adversely affect the business interests of the relevant 
third party, given the subject matter discussed within the document. 

After careful consideration of all relevant factors, I have decided that, on balance, the factors against 
disclosure outweigh those favouring disclosure. Accordingly, I am of the view that disclosure of the 
conditionally exempt material would be contrary to the public interest. 

4. Deletion of irrelevant matter 

Section 22 of the FOI Act provides that if giving access to a document would disclose information that 
would be reasonably regarded as irrelevant to the request, it is possible for the Department to 
prepare an edited copy of the document, modified by deletions, ensuring that the edited copy would 
not disclose any information that would reasonable be regarded as irrelevant to the request.  

On 29 October 2021, the Department advised you of its policy to exclude personal and direct contact 
details of officers not in the Senior Executive Service (SES) and any Ministerial staff, as well as any 
person’s signature, and the mobile or direct numbers of SES officers, which are contained in the 
documents that fall within the terms of an FOI request. This category of information is identified as 
irrelevant and I am satisfied that those parts of the document may be deleted under section 22(1)(a)(ii) 
of the FOI Act.  

The remainder of the document has been released to you (to the extent that it is not exempt) as it is 
relevant to your request. A copy of the document for release is attached to this decision. 

Publication of documents 
Under section 11C of the FOI Act, the Department will make arrangements to publish the documents 
released to you on the Department’s FOI Disclosure Log.8  

Review Rights 
The FOI Guidelines state that: 

A revised decision does not automatically conclude the IC review. The revised decision will be the 
decision under review (s 55G(2)(b)). The OAIC will generally consult the applicant as to whether 
they wish to continue the IC review on the basis of the revised decision.9 

Complaints  
If you are unhappy with the way we have handled your FOI request, please let us know what we could 
have done better. If you are not satisfied with our response, you can make a complaint to the 

                                                 
8 https://www.pmc.gov.au/about-us/accountability-and-reporting/information-and-privacy/foi-disclosure-logs  
9 FOI Guidelines [10.70]. 
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Australian Information Commissioner. A complaint to the IC must be made in writing. More 
information about complaints is available here.10    

If you wish to discuss any aspect of your requests, you can contact the FOI Section by email at 
foi@pmc.gov.au.  

 

Yours sincerely 

 

David Belgrove 
Acting Assistant Secretary 
Parliamentary and Government Branch 
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 
 
X October 2023 

                                                 
10 https://www.oaic.gov.au/freedom-of-information/your-freedom-of-information-rights/freedom-of-information-complaints  











From: OAIC - FOI DR
To: FOI
Subject: MR21/01441 - Notice of IC review and request for documents [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Friday, 11 August 2023 12:30:29 PM
Attachments: MR21-01441 - Notice of IC Review.pdf

form-receipt.pdf
2021-12-13_FOI IR_access refusal regarding subsequent correspondence with ausaid(2).pdf

 

Our reference: MR21/01441
Agency reference: FOI/2021/267IR

FOI Contact Officer
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet

By email: xxx@xxx.xxx.xx
 
Notice of IC review and request for documents
Dear FOI Contact Officer

Please find attached the notice of IC review and request for documents.

Please note, the Information Commissioner will share the submissions you provide during
IC review with the applicant unless there are compelling reasons not to. However, we do
not provide the applicant with copies of the documents at issue. Should you wish to
provide submissions in confidence, please refer to the IC Review Procedure Direction
which sets out the process for making such a request.         

Kind regards

   (she/her)
Intake and Early Resolution Officer
Freedom of Information Branch
Office of the Australian Information Commissioner
Sydney |GPO Box 5288 Sydney NSW 2001
P 1300 363 992 E xxxxx@xxxx.xxx.xx

 
The OAIC acknowledges Traditional Custodians of Country across Australia and their continuing connection to land, waters
and communities. We pay our respect to First Nations people, cultures and Elders past and present.
 
Subscribe to Information Matters

 

 
 

Notice:

The information contained in this email message and any attached files may be confidential
information, and may also be the subject of legal professional privilege. If you are not the
intended recipient any use, disclosure or copying of this email is unauthorised. If you
received this email in error, please notify the sender by contacting the department's
switchboard on 1300 488 064 during business hours (8:30am - 5pm Canberra time) and
delete all copies of this transmission together with any attachments.
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− Direction as to certain procedures to be followed in IC reviews issued under  
s 55(2)(e)(i) of the FOI Act. 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

Intake and Early Resolution Team 

Freedom of Information Regulatory Branch 
Office of the Australian Information Commissioner 

[Enclosed: IC review application and decision under review]. 

11 August 2023   

s 47F 



Reference	code:	9BNSH5V5

Information
Commissioner
Review
Application	form

Getting	started
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The	Office	of	the	Australian	Information	Commissioner	can	review	a
Freedom	of	Information	(FOI)	decision	made	by	an	Australian
Government	agency	or	an	Australian	Government	Minister.

The	Office	does	not	review	FOI	decisions	made	by	State,	Territory	or
local	government	agencies.

The	Office	encourages	you	to	apply	for	an	internal	review	by	the
agency	before	lodging	a	request	for	review	with	this	Office.	Information
relating	to	the	internal	review	process
(https://www.oaic.gov.au/freedom-of-information/reviews/internal-
review/)	is	available	on	our	website	(https://www.oaic.gov.au/).

The	Information	Commissioner	has	given	a	general	direction	under	s
55(2)(e)(i)	of	the	FOI	Act	which	sets	out	the	procedure	to	be	followed
by	applicants	for	IC	reviews	undertaken	by	the	Information
Commissioner	under	the	FOI	Act.	To	view	the	direction
(https://www.oaic.gov.au/freedom-of-information/reviews/direction-as-
to-certain-procedures-to-be-followed-by-applicants-in-information-
commissioner-reviews)	and	the	‘Quick	guide’
(https://www.oaic.gov.au/freedom-of-information/reviews/quick-guide-
information-commissioner-review-direction-for-applicants),	please	visit
our	website.

Information	relating	to	the	Information	Commissioner	review	process
(https://www.oaic.gov.au/freedom-of-information/reviews/information-
commissioner-review-process/)	is	available	on	our	website.	Part	10	of
the	FOI	Guidelines	(https://www.oaic.gov.au/freedom-of-
information/foi-guidelines/part-10-review-by-the-information-
commissioner/)	(Review	by	the	Information	Commissioner)	describes
the	principles	that	inform	the	OAIC’s	approach	to	Information
Commissioner	review.

An	application	for	review	must	be	submitted	in	writing,	either	via	this
form,	an	email,	or	in	a	letter.	If	you	have	trouble	completing	this	form
please	send	an	email	to	FOIDR@oaic.gov.au.











Adv se	scope	of	rev ew.	*

P ease	prov de	a	summary	of	wh ch	exemp on/s	you	d sagree	w h	and	prov de	reasons	why	you	d sagree.

Are	 here	any	par cu ar	documen s	(no ng	documen 	or	fo o	number)	 ha 	you	wou d	 ke	rev ewed?

1.	We	d sagree	w h	 he	sec on	42	exemp on	c am	app ed	 o	 he	ema 's	non subs an ve	ma er a 	such	as	subjec 	 ne,	address
b ock,	da e/ me,	sa u a on,	c ass f ca on,	c os ng	words	and	s gna ure	b ock.	The	Federa 	Cour 	ru ed	such	 nforma on	 s	no
exemp 	under	sec on	42	of	 he	FOI	Ac 	 n	'Taggar 	and	C v 	Av a on	Safe y	Au hor y	(FOI)	[2016]	AATA	327	Forg e	DP	

2.	We	d sagree	w h	cond ona 	exemp ons	c amed	v a	sec ons	47C,	47E(d)	and	47G	of	 he	FOI	Ac .	P ease	cons der:

a.	Sec on	47C(3)(c)	of	 he	FOI	Ac 	s a es	sec on	47C	does	no 	app y	 o	 he	record	of,	or	a	forma 	s a emen 	of	 he	reasons	for,	a
f na 	dec s on	g ven	 n	 he	exerc se	of	a	power	or	of	an	adjud ca ve	func on.	The	documen 	we	seek	appears	 o	mee 	 h s	excep on
(c).

b.	Sec on	47E	No e	s a es	 ha 	access	mus 	genera y	be	g ven	 o	a	cond ona y	exemp 	documen 	un ess	 	wou d	be	con rary	 o
he	pub c	 n eres .	We	respec fu y	con end	 ha 	 he	pub c	 n eres 	fac ors	favour ng	d sc osure	ou we gh	 hose	aga ns 	and	we
respec fu y	ask	 he	Comm ss oner	 o	cons der	se ng	as de	 he	depar men 's	sec on	47E	c ams.	The	 nheren 	pub c	 n eres 	 n
ensur ng	Aus ra an	pub c	servan s	ac 	 n	accordance	w h	 he r	du es	and	ob ga ons	 s	profound	and	c ear.	As	 s	 he	pub c	 n eres
n	ensur ng	dec s on	maker's	dec s ons	are	 awfu 	and	made	 n	accordance	w h	 he	powers	de ega ed	 o	 hem.	Re evan y,
documen s	show	 he	depar men 	prov ded	a	wr en	agreemen 	 o	AusAID	 o	de ver	 he	proposed	amendmen 	 o	PSPM	McLucas.
A arm ng y	FOI	documen s	revea 	 he	depar men 	w hhe d	 he	documen s	from	 he	M n s er.	The	depar men 	has	never
sa sfac or y	exp a ned	why	 hey	w hhe d	 he	documen s	from	 he	PSPM	and	 he r	excuses	are	weak	and	unsubs an a ed.	Sec on
3(2)(b)	of	 he	FOI	Ac 	enab es	 ncreased	scru ny,	d scuss on,	commen 	and	rev ew	of	 he	governmen 's	ac v es.	Documen s	 o
hand	show	a	d shonoured	agreemen .	The	 n egr y	of	 he	HOSM	and	 's	assoc a ed	processes	 s	 n	doub 	and	 he	pub c	are	en ed
o	know	 f	 he	depar men 	ac ed	proper y	a 	 h s	junc ure.	

c.	The	depar men 	has	no 	sa sfac or y	exp a ned	 he r	sec on	47G	c am.	Con ro 	R sk	Group	and	AusAID	fu y	suppor ed	 he
proposed	amendmen 	and	expec ed	 	 o	be	de vered	 o	PSPM	McLucas	 n	accordance	w h	 he	depar men 's	wr en	agreemen 	 o
do	so.	The	depar men 	has	no 	s a ed	how	d sc osure	w 	affec 	CRG	g ven	 hey	were,	and	s 	are,	 n	suppor .

refused	access	because	a	prac ca 	refusa 	reason	ex s s

refused	access	because	documen s	canno 	be	found

deferred	access	 o	documen s	I	reques ed

refused	 o	make	correc ons	 o	my	persona 	 nforma on

dec ded	 o	re ease	 nforma on	abou 	me	or	my	bus ness.

charged	me	 ncorrec y

gran ed	access	 o	documen s	bu 	I	have	no 	rece ved	 hem

gran ed	access	 o	a	qua f ed	person	and	no 	d rec y	 o	me

refused	 o	ex end	 he	 me	for	me	 o	seek	an	 n erna 	rev ew

gran ed	access	 o	documen s	 ha 	I	was	consu ed	abou

gran ed	access	 o	documen s	 ha 	my	bus ness	was	consu ed	abou





Submission

Submitting	your	application	for	review

P ease	rev ew	the	 nformat on	you	have	prov ded	 n	th s	form.	If	you	wou d	 ke	to	change	anyth ng,	you	can
return	to	the	re evant	sect on	by	us ng	the	Go	Back	button.

Once	you	are	ready	to	subm t	your	form,	c ck	the	Submit	button	be ow.

Once	you	subm t	your	form,	you	w 	be	taken	to	a	conf rmat on	page.	Th s	page	w 	prov de	a	rece pt
number	for	your	subm ss on,	and	you	w 	be	ab e	to	down oad	a	copy	of	your	comp eted	form	or	have	a
copy	sent	to	an	ema 	address	of	your	cho ce.

Further	 nformat on	about	the	Informat on	Comm ss oner	rev ew	process
(https://www.oa c.gov.au/freedom-of- nformat on/fo -gu de nes/part-10-rev ew-by-the- nformat on-
comm ss oner/),	 nc ud ng	about	what	happens	when	an	Informat on	Comm ss oner	rev ew	app cat on	 s
made	(https://www.oa c.gov.au/freedom-of- nformat on/fo -gu de nes/part-10-rev ew-by-the- nformat on-
comm ss oner/#steps- n-the- nformat on-comm ss oner-rev ew-process),	can	be	found	on	our	webs te
(https://www.oa c.gov.au/).
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OFFICIAL
OAIC ref: MR21/01441
PM&C reference FOI/2021/267IC
 
Dear
 
Thank you for granting us an extension to 29 September 2023 for this matter and related matter

 
As foreshadowed in the related matter, the Department is undertaking further consultations and
enquiries in an attempt to identify if any material is now able to be released to the applicant
under a revised decision.
 
Given the Department’s further consideration of this matter, we request an additional extension
of time to 27 October 2023. I would be grateful for your confirmation that the OAIC is amenable
to the extension request.
 
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

 
 

From: OAIC - FOI DR <xxxxx@xxxx.xxx.xx>  
Sent: Friday, 22 September 2023 8:41 AM
To: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx>
Subject: RE: Extension of time request - MR21/01441 - Notice of IC review and request for
documents [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]
 

OFFICIAL: Sensitive
 

FOI/2023/313 - Document 31

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 
47F 

s 47F 

s 22(1)(a)(ii)



Dear 
 
Thank you for your email. I apologise for the delay in responding to your requests.
 
With respect to your request to provide submissions in confidence, I grant your request on the
basis that you provide an open submission to be shared with the applicant.
 
Your request for an extension of time to provide a response to the section 54Z Notice until 29
September 2023 is granted.
 
Thank you for your patience.
 
Kind Regards
 

 
Assistant Director Freedom of Information
Office of the Australian Information Commissioner
Sydney| GPO Box 5288 Sydney NSW 2001
P 1300 362 992    E xxxxx@xxxx.xxx.xx

 
The OAIC acknowledges Traditional Custodians of Country across Australia and their continuing connection to land,
waters and communities. We pay our respect to First Nations people, cultures and Elders past and present.
 
Subscribe to Information Matters

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

OFFICIAL: Sensitive
From: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx > 
Sent: Monday, September 18, 2023 12:17 PM
To: OAIC - FOI DR <xxxxx@xxxx.xxx.xx>
Cc: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx >
Subject: RE: Extension of time request - MR21/01441 - Notice of IC review and request
for documents [SEC=OFFICIAL]
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

 
OFFICIAL

OAIC ref: MR21/01441
PM&C reference FOI/2021/267IC
 
Dear 
 
I am just following up in relation to the request for extension below.
 

s 47F 

s 47F 

s 47F 



Please let us know if you require anything further.
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, 12 September 2023 3:49 PM
To: OAIC - FOI DR <xxxxx@xxxx.xxx.xx>
Cc: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx >
Subject: RE: Extension of time request - MR21/01441 - Notice of IC review and request for
documents [SEC=OFFICIAL]
 

OFFICIAL
Dear 
 
Thank you for granting the Department’s extension of time request.
 
By way of an update, we have now received consultation comments regarding this matter. The
Department is now preparing submissions and documents as set out in paragraph 10.100 of the
FOI Guidelines. We note that our submissions will likely contain confidential material which we
claim is exempt from release under the FOI Act. Accordingly, we seek the OAIC’s agreement to
receive confidential submissions, accompanied by an open version that can be shared with the
applicant.
 
In addition, the submissions would require thorough review from the relevant line area before it
can be finalised. Due to competing priorities within the FOI section and the subject matter line
area, as well as staff leave on both sections, we are seeking a further 2-week extension of time
to Friday, 29 September 2023 to provide our submissions.
 
We would be grateful if you could please advise if the OAIC would be amenable to our requests
for extension of time and to provide confidential submissions. If you require further information,
please let me know.
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, 29 August 2023 1:23 PM
To: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx >
Subject: RE: Extension of time request - MR21/01441 - Notice of IC review and request for
documents [SEC=OFFICIAL]
 
Dear 
 
Thank you for your email, your extension of time request is granted to 15 September 2023.
 
Kind regards
 

 Freedom of Information Branch
Office of the Australian Information Commissioner
GPO Box 5288 Sydney NSW 2001  |  oaic.gov.au
1300 363 992  |  xxxxx@xxxx.xxx.xx

| | |  Subscribe to OAICnet newsletter
 
 
 
 

From: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx > 
Sent: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 11:04 AM
To: OAIC - FOI DR <xxxxx@xxxx.xxx.xx>
Cc: FOI <xxx@xxx.xxx.xx >
Subject: Extension of time request - MR21/01441 - Notice of IC review and request for
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
 
I write in relation to the abovementioned matter.
 
Given the passage of time, the Department is currently undertaking internal consultations (and
possibly to be followed by external consultations), to assess the ongoing sensitivity of the
material in question and to identify if there is any material which may now be appropriate for
release.
 
Given this, we request a two-week extension of time to Friday, 15 September 2023, to enable
the Department to receive the consultation comments and settle our position. Should the
Department need further time than this, we will promptly update the OAIC.
 
Thank you for your consideration. Please let us know if you require further information.
 
Kind regards

 
Adviser | FOI and Privacy
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet
p
Ngunnawal Country | One National Circuit Barton ACT 2600 | PO Box 6500 CANBERRA ACT 2600
e. xxx@xxx.xxx.xx   w. pmc.gov.au

s 47F 

s 47F 

s 22(1)(a)(ii)






